ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 28, 2013
3:22 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t

Representati ve Bob Herron

Representative Charisse MIllett
Representati ve Dan Saddl er

Represent ati ve Andrew Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 26
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of
Account ancy; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 26 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 22
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of
Pilots; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 22(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 26

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BOARD OF PUBLI C ACCOUNTANCY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER, THOVPSON

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) L&C, FIN

01/ 28/ 13 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 22

SHORT TITLE: BOARD OF MARI NE PI LOTS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) OLSON

Publ i c

Mari ne

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2013



01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) L&C, FIN

01/ 28/ 13 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HB 26.

KRI'S CURTIS, Legislative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Finance

Legi sl ative Agencies & Ofices

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 26.

DON HABEGER, Director

Cor por ati ons, Business, and Professional Licensing (CBPL)
Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 26.

ANNA LATHAM St af f

Representative Kurt O son, Chair

House Labor & Comrerce Standing Committee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative Kurt
A son, Chair, House Labor & Commerce Conmittee, sponsor of HB
22.

LI NDA DAY, Audit Manager

Legi slative Audit Division

Legi sl ative Agencies & Ofices

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 22.

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyi st

Sout hwest Pil ots Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 22.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -2- January 28, 2013



DAVI D ARTZ, Captain; Marine Pilot menber,

Board of Marine Pilots (BMP)

Department of Commrerce, Conmunity & Econom c¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 22.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:22:24 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:22 p.m Represent ati ves
Saddl er, Josephson, Herron, Mllett, Reinbold and O son were
present at the call to order. Representative Chenault arrived

as the neeting was in progress.

HB 26- EXTEND BOARD OF PUBLI C ACCOUNTANCY

3:23:11 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 26, "An Act extending the term nation date of the
Board of Public Accountancy; and providing for an effective
date."

3:23:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWER, Alaska State Legislature, stated
that HB 26 is one of the mnisterial duties of the |egislature,
which is reauthorization of boards and conm ssions in conpliance
with the recommendations nade by the |egislative auditors. He
related the bill would extend the termnation date of the Board
of Public Accountancy (BPA) until June 30, 2021, in accordance
with the recommendations of the |egislative auditors. The
auditors concluded that the BPA serves the public interests by
effectively licensing certified public accountants. The board
also nmonitors the profession and ensures that only qualified
i ndi vidual s practice as certified public accountants (CPAs).

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the auditor's one recommendati on had
nothing to do with the board and instead pertained to an ongoi ng
adm nistrative issue wthin the Division of Corporations,
Busi ness and Professional Licensing (CBPL) in the Departnent of
Commerce, Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnment ( DCCED) . He rel ated
the CBPL division admnisters all professional boards and
licenses, but the division stills needs to address deficiencies
with its investigative case managenent system He pointed out
the CBPL agrees with this decision and is continuing to work to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2013



i npl enent  the system He noted previously another audit
recommendati on was made for inprovenents to the CBPL, which the
di vi sion has resol ved. He acknow edged the extension is until
June 30, 2021, which spans a long period, but pointed out that
audits cost noney. He did not see the state dissolving the BPA,

since the regulation of accountants wll always be necessary.
The BPA has denonstrated its maturity, nanages the CPAs, works
with the legislature, and governnent as clearly intended. He

asked nenbers to pass out the bill.
3:27:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked for a status on the <corrective
nmeasur es.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked the division to respond, but added
he thought the managenent has undergone personnel changes and
has devel oped an admi nistrative pl an.

3:28: 22 PM

KRIS CURTIS, Legi sl ative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Fi nance, Legislative Agencies & Ofices, said the auditors are
just beginning to conduct five sunset audits and auditors have
not revisited the agency to determ ne whether the finding has
been addressed; however sonmeone from the division mght be able
to answer the status.

3:29:14 PM

DON HABECER, Director, Corporations, Business, and Professional
Li censing (CBPL), Departnment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED), responded that the division has taken a
nunber of steps to correct the deficiency. He related in 2011
the legislative auditors audited the division. At the tinme, the
division had recently purchased and installed an investigative
dat abase. One audit finding was that the database conversion
did not convert adequately and data was m ssing. Thus, the
di vision needed to go back and retool. The division discovered
other issues and formed a task force that identified 11 issues
to inprove the database software and hardware. The division
requested and received supplenental funding fromthe |egislature
in FY 12 to inplenment these tasks. He reported the division
marshaled task force tw and is about halfway finished
i npl enmenting the 11 tasks. He anticipated it wll take to the
end of FY 13 to conplete.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2013



3:31:22 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if he was confortable with the extension date.

MR. HABEGER answered that at this tinme he is confortable. He
said the vendor seens to be respondi ng appropriately.

3:31:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER rel ated sone boards have had issues with
the investigative expenses and asked him whether this is also an
i ssue with the BPA

MR. HABEGER answered no, not wth investigations. He agreed
with Representative Hawker's view that the BPA is a nature
boar d. He said he has observed the BPA at neetings and "they
don't take any guff fromtheir licensees.” He concluded the BPA
is quite an inpressive group in howit deals with its issues.

3:32: 50 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 26.

3:33:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report HB 26 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 26 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

3:33:43 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from3:33 p.m to 3:36 p.m

HB 22- BOARD OF MARI NE PI LOTS

3:36: 04 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 22, "An Act extending the term nation date of the
Board of Marine Pilots; and providing for an effective date.”
3:36: 07 PM

ANNA LATHAM Staff, Representative Kurt dson, Chair, House

Labor & Conmerce Standing Committee, Alaska State Legislature,
stated HB 22 wll extend the termnate date of the Board of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -5- January 28, 2013



Marine Pilots. This bill would extend the term nation date of
the Board of Marine Pilots (BMP) wuntil June 30, 2018. In
accordance wth the provisions of AS 24 and AS 44, Legislative
Budget & Audit Committee (LB&A) reviewed the activities of the
Board of Marine Pilots (BWMP) to determ ne whether there was a
denonstrated public need for the board's continued existence and
to see if it had been operating in an efficient manner. It was
the opinion of the LB&A that the BMP should be extended.
Regulating and licensing qualified marine pilots benefits the
public safety and welfare and protects the marine environnment.

3:37:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD nade a notion to adopt the proposed
committee substitute (CS) for HB 22, labeled 28-LS0139/U,
Martin, 1/24/13, as the working docunent.

CHAIR OLSON [treated it as though he objected for the purpose of
di scussi on. ]

M5. LATHAM referred to the changes in the proposed comittee
substitute for HB 22. The bill was prefiled and after review ng
the audit the termnation date was changed to reflect the date
suggested in the legislative audit.

CHAI R OLSON remarked he took his best guess when submitting the
bill for prefile.

3:38:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON referred to the audit and said he noticed
nore positive responses canme fromwthin the industry than from
marine pilots. He asked for an explanation and wondered if any
di sconnect exists between the pilots and the board.

3:39: 06 PM

LI NDA DAY, Audi t Manager , Legislative Audit Di vi si on,
Legislative Agencies & Ofices, stated the response to the

survey was good. She related that 62 percent of 86 pilots
responded to the survey and 12 of 24 industry stakehol ders also
r esponded. She reported the response rate was slightly |ower

for stakehol ders, which nay be due to the timng of the survey
since the division conducted the survey in the summer.

3:40: 04 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the board has experienced
any difficulties with investigative expenses.

M5. CURTIS deferred to Ms. Day, but noted the Board of Marine
Pilots has a coor di nat or position who conduct s any
investigations rather than the BWMP using the division's
i nvestigative unit.

M5. DAY, after clarifying that the question referred to the
investigative process and cost of investigations, answered no.
The auditors found investigations were occurring and the process
was reasonabl e.

3:41: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether substantive questions
about marine pilots can be addressed today.

3:41: 55 PM

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyi st, Southwest Alaska Pilots Association
related that HB 22, [Version U, would extend the board [unti

June 30, 2019]. He related about ten years ago sone
difficulties existed between the Board of Marine Pilots (BMP)
and the industry. He said a mmjor conpromse was struck and

providing the background mnmight help the comittee better
understand how the BMP operates. He explained narine pilots are
required, which creates questions on setting rates. The system
subsequently established uses a private sector approach, and
allows the pilots to post the tariff, and for industry to have
opportunity to challenge the rate before the BMP if stakehol ders
believe the rates are too high. Thus, if the marine pilots
cannot justify their tariff rate, the BMP can reject it and ask
the pilots to re-negotiate a new rate. He pointed out the audit

descri bes how the system works, including highlighting that a
"no strike clause" exists. He offered his belief the system
works well. He identified the BMP' s nakeup as consisting of two

marine pilots, two industry nmenbers, and three public nenbers.
The marine pilots and industry provide the necessary expertise,
but in instances in which the marine pilots and industry becone
deadl ocked, the public nenbers have the ability to neke the
decision. He advised that marine pilot license fees pay for the
program which consists solely of program receipts wthout any
general fund noni es.

3:44:50 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked what recommendation M. Fuhs has
during instances when the narine pilot coordinator position
becones vacant. He related a scenario in which the coordinator
position is vacant for six nmonths and no one is there to
coordi nate public noticing and testing.

MR. FUHS said he was unsure. He said the situation has never
arisen, but pointed out the division has other supervisors. He
surmsed that M. Habeger would place soneone in the marine
pil ot coordinator position tenporarily who could nake public
announcenents and that the division would recruit tinely.

3:46: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recalled during the Exxon Valdez oil
spill that [alcohol and drug] testing was required, which he
t hought was federal law. He inquired as to whether any drug and
al cohol testing occurs for tanker and sea capt ai ns.

MR FUHS said he was not certain of the specific |aws, but
marine pilots are subjected to an extrenely rigorous random drug
and al cohol testing. He stated that the U S. Coast Guard has
i ncreased requi renents for mari ners, in general , but
particularly for marine pilots who navigate the Val dez Narrows.
He offered his belief that if a marine pilot had been on board
the Exxon Valdez [in 1989] that an accident would not have
happened. He reported there has never been a subsequent
i nci dent .

3:47: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recalled under the enabling act it is
optional for the BMP to conduct [drug and al cohol] testing, but
[the auditor] goes on to say the tests should be mandatory. He
said the auditor expressed some concern about this oversight.
He asked whether this concern is valid or if the concern is
over st at ed.

MR. FUHS responded in the previous audit, five years ago, sone
additional concerns were raised by auditors, but the [BW]
conpletely resolved the issues, and the nost current audit has
found the BMP in conpliance, except for sone mnor scheduling
i ssues. He characterized the BMP as being in substantial
conpl i ance.

3:48: 09 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2013



DAVI D ARTZ, Captain; Marine Pilot, Board of Marine Pilots (BWMP),
Departnment of  Commerce, Community & Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED), said he is a nmarine pilot and operates in Region 3 -
Western Al aska, based in Dutch Harbor. He responded, wth
respect to drug and alcohol testing, that M. Fuhs is correct
that state pilots are subject to mandatory random drug testing
t hroughout the whole vyear. Additionally, the marine pilots
routinely and regularly submt to testing. In terns of oil
tankers operating in and out of Prince WIIliam Sound, additional
requirenents fall under federal and |ocal requirenments for ship
masters and marine pilots, who nust submt to alcohol testing
prior to the departure of vessels within Prince WIIiam Sound.
He reiterated that this requirenment is an additional requirenent
[ since the 1989 Exxon Val dez oil spill].

3:50: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ~ JOSEPHSON recal | ed Representati ve Herron's
question that sonme tension was identified in the surveys of
marine pilots and stakehol ders. For exanple, 29 of 53 pilots
gave the BMP a poor on objectivity. He asked for clarification
on the undercurrents.

MR. ARTZ remarked that is a tough question to answer. He said
at a recent BMP's neeting the chairman addressed this specific
i ssue. He offered his belief that the pendul um swi ngs back and
forth depending on the nakeup of the board and the specific
chai r man. He characterized the board process as being a fair
system consisting of six nenbers plus a designee of the
conmi ssi on. He suggested it depends on whether the board is
holding a rate hearing or addressing sonething else. He
reported the influence swings between the marine pilots and the
i ndustry. He characterized it as a working system and the
pilots operating in Western Al aska, for the nost part, think the
systemis currently working well in ternms of the primry purpose
of safe navigation of vessels wunder the pilot's control,
protection of Ilife, and protection of the narine environnent.
He <concluded that he did not think the relationship was
adversarial or specific tensions existed, but is a neans of
keepi ng a bal ance.

3:52: 28 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 22.

3:52: 50 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- January 28, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked the auditors to speak to
potential vacancies and staffing issues.

M5. CURTIS reiterated the question, which is whether the agency
has done anything to address periodic vacancies of the marine
pil ot coordinator position. The auditors identified the issue
in a prior sunset audit. She reported the agency has
established procedures in response to the concern and the
procedures are reasonabl e.

3:53: 55 PM
CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection to the bill.
3:54: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 22, |abeled 28-LS0139/U, Martin, 1/24/13,
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB22(L&C)
was reported fromthe House Labor & Conmerce Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated he would support the notion and
sai d:

| think marine pilots do pretty heroic work. [|'mglad
they're there. "1l never forget where | was at the
end of March 1989. | renmenber the intersection in
Anchorage when | heard over the radio what had
happened in Prince WIlliam Sound and | hope | never
have to hear or see anything |ike that again.

CHAIR OLSON remarked that a marine pilot was not piloting the
vessel at the tinme of the 1989 incident.

3:55: 07 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
3:55 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- January 28, 2013



